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This Tour is organized so you can walk up one side of the street and come back on the
other side. Take your time to enjoy the neighborhood, and to walk as much as you
would like.



The Town Founded by the Railroad

The Denver & Rio Grande Railroad founded Durango as a rival town. Unable to make a deal
with Animas City, the railroad established a depot site two miles to the south. In 1880, General
William J. Palmer, president of the railroad, along with William A. Bell and John A. Porter,
formed the Durango Trust for the purposed townsite of Durango. The original plan was a tidy
grid of streets with the commercial enterprises near the railroad and the residential properties
located upslope and away from the commerce. The grid is intact today. By 1881 Durango had a
town government and issued its first ordinance. In November, by vote of electors, Durango
replaced Parrot City as the La Plata County seat.

It wasn’t long before houses, and churches were constructed as was the San Juan and New York
Mining and Smelter Company smelter. Smoke from the smelter choked the sky. The 1890 census
recorded 2726 citizens. By 1892 locals enjoyed electric lights, a streetcar line, and at least three
newspapers. In 1910, 4686 people lived in Durango, which by then had its own water works and
electric companies. Although often described as a late 19t century boomtown, Durango has
grown with periodic shifts in the economy to reflect changing times. The range of architectural
styles on Main Avenue is a living link to the prosperous and the hard times in Durango’s past.
Our downtown buildings will also introduce you to some of the people who have made the city.

Come walk through over 100 years of history on Main
Avenue.
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Imag ine stepping off the train in 1882. You would have arrived at this Denver and Rio
Grande Railroad depot, which is now a National Historic Landmark. Salesmen stayed in the less
expensive hotels in this block, but the more elegant hotels were located farther away from the
bustle and soot of the train station. The smelter, located on the hill across the river to the south
added to the smoke in the air.



552 Built in 1906; this was The Bellview saloon and rooming house. It
was owned by John and Anton Baudino whose family owned the building for 50
years.

This block was a focal point for the Italian-American community in Durango in

the first half of the 1900s. 528 was the DiUbaldo Grocery, D32 was primarily
a saloon, although it served a short life as a soft drink fountain during

Prohibition. 846 is a new building which replaced the Fiorini Home. The Fiorinis’ monument
shop still operated from property behind this store.

758-764 These two stores contain typical architectural elements of a turn-of-the-century
storefront. The large windows provided a display area while allowing maximum light to enter
the store. The central recessed entryway protected the doorway. The clerestory above the
awnings provided extra light. The pressed metal cornice work was mass-produced and used on
commercial storefronts throughout the country.

846 This brick storefront was “modernized” with a veneer of Carrera Glass, a structural
glass popular in the slick, streamlined surfaces of the architectural
styles of the 1930s and 40s. Carrera Glass in no longer made. Recent
replacement of broken tiles on the storefront led to the discovery of a
stash of Carrera Glass that a World War II veteran had brought back
with him from Europe and had stored in his back yard for almost 50
years. Much of this “cache” has replaced cracked original pieces.

900 This Richardson / Romanesque style building housed the Colorado
State Bank from 1892 until the Bank’s failure Durango the silver crash
of 1907. The Burns National Bank has operated here since 1910.

920 “A.C. Richey and Brother” operated a bookstore
here, followed by Rickey Confectionary and Stationary store. A well-known
local soda fountain for many years, the last remnants of the candy-making
business are still on the front of the store where the marble tiles were added
around 1945 and in the back of the building where the marble candy-making
block sits, too heavy to move out of the building.

990 Built in 1889, the Schneider Block housed the Keeley Institute, a reform group devolted to
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the cure of liquor, opium and tobacco habits. One of four Colorado branches,
'?47,\ the Institute operated between 1892 and the turn of the century. By 1900,
e part of the building had been transformed into a dance hall which stayed in
the building until the 1920s. The corner storefront was the Palace Grocery

i | I and Meat Market from 1900 to the 1920s, and continued as a grocery until

the late 1940s.

1138 The first occupant of this building was the Windsor Hotel. The
Durango Democrat (Herald) moved into the first floor in the 1910s and

remained there until the mid 1950s. Look for the old “ghost” sign for the
Herald on the south side of the building.




This is the farthest north extent of the Main Avenue Historic District, but historic
buildings dot Main Avenue as you continue north. Livery buildings, bottling works and
breweries were located in the immediate area. Keep your eyes open and you will see
living history on every block.

1129 Built in 1890, this was the Chapman Hardware Store until the late 1920s. The glazed
brick remodel on the first floor was another modernization project.

1015 The cast iron and pressed metal front was made by Mesker Brothers of St.
Louis, and probably came to Durango on the train. These early “pre-fab” products
were popular because they were durable, fire resistant, and less expensive.

1001 An early Durango movie house, The Gem Theater was located in this
building in 1915. The building’s original 1890s storefront is gone, but the brick
designs on the wall facing Main bring a unique element to the downtown.

975 Built in 1892, the four-story French Second Empire structure characterized
by the mansard roof has a varied history as a saloon, a post office, a bank, and a
hotel. References to French culture were often included in Victorian commercial
architecture as an allusion to the continental sophistication associated with the
French.

D 965 and 969 Two saloons operated here in the heyday of the
q.F t‘r saloon district. Bessie Rivers ran the Horseshoe Club at 969. After the saloons
i closed, two different families by the name of Wong operated cafes into the 1950s.

%\ The west side of the 900 block was the notorious “saloon district” in Durango.

Gambling halls and saloons flourished here between 1890 and Prohibition. Ten
saloons were located in the district in 1893. Prosperous local madame Bessie Rivers held court in
this block before she retired to Animas City, where her home is now part of the Western Star
Motel.

901 The oldest bank in southwestern Colorado, the First National
Bank of Durango moved south from Animas City in 1881 and operated
here from 1882 until 1980. The elaborately detailed Queen Anne
brickwork building with Romanesque sandstone arched windows was
built for $18,219 and replaced an earlier frame building that burned in

1892.

863-871 This showpiece of the D&RG’s land development company was
intended to be a model for future buildings. The D&RG tried in vain to
require property owners to build in brick and stone, only to watch much of
the city burn in 1889.




801 Built in 1892 by Charles Newman, this handsome Romanesque
sandstone building originally housed the Smelter National Bank (1892-
1897). The bank sign is still visible on the back side of the building.
Newman owned a chain of drug stores in Silverton, Alamosa, Animas
City and Chama, New Mexico. The low building attached to the back of
the Newman Building was called the Durango Novelty Works as the
garage for some of the first cars in the area.

713 The smooth, simple glazed tile storefronts and large glass panel windows

illustrate Durango’s “modern” downtown from the 1930s and 40s. In fact, 713 was

;.# remodeled from its original Victorian-era, red brick storefront to project the image
i} of the progressive men’s clothing store that occupied the building at the time.

699 The Strater Hotel exemplifies a flush period of wealth from the railroad, the
mines and the recently opened smelter. The building is an eclectic mix of Italianate,
Romanesque, and Renaissance architectural styles.

The hotel opened in 1888, and was almost immediately leased
to H.L. Rice. The partnership soured quickly, however, and four
years later Henry Strater built the Columbian immediately next door
on the former site of the county courthouse. The two hotels are now
one establishment.

643-645 La Plata Bottling Works and Saloon. Owned by Adolph

Coors until 1915, the brewery and bottling works were located at 643 with the saloon at 645.
John Kellenberger, Durango’s first Coca-Cola franchisee, purchased the operation during
Prohibition.

605 The Wetter Building is the oldest building in this block. Built as a boarding house in 1883
it housed a number of commercial ventures, including a soda water factory, the Durango Herald
printing office, a tin shop, and a grocery store.

Thank you for taking time to tour Historic Main Avenue in Durango.
More information can be found at the Animas Museum,
Located at the intersection of West 2n¢ Avenue and 315t Streets.
Have a Wonderful Day.



